
From: Moermond, Marcia (CI-StPaul)
To: Zimny, Joanna (CI-StPaul); Vang, Mai (CI-StPaul)
Subject: FW: 1629 Hartford
Date: Tuesday, December 1, 2020 1:26:32 PM
Attachments: 1629 Hartford BZA Denial.pdf

1629 Hartford Modified Permit Application.pdf
1629 Hartford Building Permit.pdf
1629 Hartford Sheriff"s Sale.pdf
1629 Hartford Code Compliance Report.pdf
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image004.png
image005.png

Hi Mai and Joanna, Can one of you attach these to the Legistar record? Thanks, Marcia
 

From: Magner, Steve (CI-StPaul) <steve.magner@ci.stpaul.mn.us> 
Sent: Monday, November 30, 2020 5:35 AM
To: Sheffer, Vicki (CI-StPaul) <vicki.sheffer@ci.stpaul.mn.us>
Cc: Moermond, Marcia (CI-StPaul) <marcia.moermond@ci.stpaul.mn.us>; Vang, Mai (CI-StPaul)
<mai.vang@ci.stpaul.mn.us>; Zimny, Joanna (CI-StPaul) <joanna.zimny@ci.stpaul.mn.us>
Subject: FW: 1629 Hartford
 
Vicki, Please add to the red folder.
 
Marcia, FYI this is back ground on this case.
 
 
 

Steve Magner
Code Enforcement Manager
Department of Safety and Inspections
375 Jackson St Suite 220
Saint Paul, MN 55101
P: 651-266-1928
F: 651-266-1919
steve.magner@ci.stpaul.mn.us

 
 

From: Soley, Reid (CI-StPaul) <reid.soley@ci.stpaul.mn.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 25, 2020 4:05 PM
To: Magner, Steve (CI-StPaul) <steve.magner@ci.stpaul.mn.us>
Cc: Yannarelly, Joe (CI-StPaul) <joe.yannarelly@ci.stpaul.mn.us>; Sheffer, Vicki (CI-StPaul)
<vicki.sheffer@ci.stpaul.mn.us>
Subject: RE: 1629 Hartford
 
Steve,
 
Before 1629 Hartford Avenue became a Cat 2 Vacant Building, the previous owner, 45 North
Investment Properties LLC, applied for a building permit to add a full second story to the home on
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CITY OF SAINT PAUL            Deadline for Action: January 7, 2019 
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS RESOLUTION 
ZONING FILE NUMBER: 18-123560 


DATE: December 3, 2018 
 
 
WHEREAS, Suzanne Griffiths - 45 North Investment Properties LLC has applied for a variance from 
the strict application of the provisions of Section 66.231, 66.231(1) of the Saint Paul Legislative Code 
pertaining to construction of a second story addition to an existing, one- and a half- story single-family 
dwelling. For single-family dwellings zoned R4 and located in Planning Districts 15, a maximum 
building height of 22’ at a 4’ side yard setback is allowed. The existing side setback for this structure is 
3.8’ on the west side, which would allow a maximum building height of 22’ and the proposed height of 
the structure will be 24.8’, for a variance request of 2.8’ for height and a variance request of .2’ for the 
west side yard setback in the R4 zoning district at 1629 Hartford Avenue. PIN: 092823410082; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Saint Paul Board of Zoning Appeals conducted a public hearing on December 3, 2018 
pursuant to said application in accordance with the requirements of Section 61.601 of the Legislative 
Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Saint Paul Board of Zoning Appeals based upon evidence presented at the public 
hearing, as substantially reflected in the minutes, made the following findings of fact: 
 
1. The variance is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the zoning code. 
 


The applicant is proposing to construct a second story addition to an existing, one- and a half- 
story single-family dwelling. For single-family dwellings zoned R4 and located in Planning 
Districts 15, a maximum building height of 22’ at a 4’ side yard setback is allowed. The existing 
side setback for this structure is 3.8’ on the west side, which would allow a maximum building 
height of 22’ and the proposed height of the structure will be 24.8’, for a variance request of 
2.8’ for height and a variance request of .2’ for the west side yard setback. 
 
The proposed height of the structure does not align with the district council’s intent to maintain 
the height of single-family dwellings at 22’ within its district. This finding is not met. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution 
File #: 18-123560 
 
2. The variance is consistent with the comprehensive plan. 
 


The proposed addition is an improvement to the property that would support the rehabilitation of 
Saint Paul’s existing housing stock. The requested variances are consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan by allowing the existing property owner in an “established neighborhood” 
to reinvest in his property and maintain its vitality and preserve and promote the neighborhood 







(Strategy 2.1 of the Housing Plan). This finding is met for both variance requests. 
 
3. The applicant has established that there are practical difficulties in complying with the provision, that 
the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the provision. 
Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties. 
 


This house was constructed in 1928 and was not built centered to the lot. As a result, the 
structure now has a nonconforming side yard setback of .2’ from the west property line and a 
setback of 8’ from the east side property line. Because this house was built closer to the west 
property line, the applicant would have to shift the addition over .2’ to meet the required side 
setback, which would be unreasonable. 


 
The existing rear addition was constructed prior to the zoning code change for building height 
for single-family dwellings in District 15. It is difficult to align the building height on rear of the 
house with the front without the requested variance. The new roof pitch in the front of the house 
will complement the south elevation and improve the aesthetics of the structure. This finding is 
met for both variance requests.  


 
4. The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the 
landowner. 
 


The proposed additional height of the building is a plight created by the landowner. This finding 
is not met. 


 
5. The variance will not permit any use that is not allowed in the zoning district where the affected land 
is located. 
 


This property is zoned R4, single-family residential district. The proposed variances will not 
allow a use that is not permitted. This finding is met for both variance requests. 


 
 
 
 
 
Resolution 
File #: 18-123560 
 
6. The variance will not alter the essential character of the surrounding area. 
 


The proposed siding would not improve the aesthetic of the house and it would alter the essential 
character of the surrounding area. This finding is not met. 


 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Saint Paul Board of Zoning Appeals that the request 
to waive the provisions of Section 66.231, 66.231(1) to allow the height of the structure to be 24.8’, for a 
variance request of 2.8’ for height and a variance request of .2’ for the west side yard setback on 
property located at 1629 Hartford Avenue; and legally described as Mattock Park Lot 14 Blk 5; in 
accordance with the application for variance and the site plan on file with the Zoning Administrator IS 
HEREBY DENIED. 
 
 







MOVED BY: Rangel-Morales 


SECONDED BY: Swift 


IN FAVOR: 4 


AGAINST: 2 
 
MAILED: December 4, 2018 
 
 
 







 
Resolution 
File #: 18-123560  
 
 
 
 
TIME LIMIT: No decision of the zoning or planning administrator, planning commission, board of 


zoning appeals or city council approving a site plan, permit, variance, or other 
zoning approval shall be valid for a period longer than two (2) years, unless a 
building permit is obtained within such period and the erection or alteration of a 
building is proceeding under the terms of the decision, or the use is established 
within such period by actual operation pursuant to the applicable conditions and 
requirements of the approval, unless the zoning or planning administrator grants 
an extension not to exceed one (1) year. 


 
APPEAL: Decisions of the Board of Zoning Appeals are final subject to appeal to the City 


Council within 10 days by anyone affected by the decision. Building permits shall 
not be issued after an appeal has been filed. If permits have been issued before an 
appeal has been filed, then the permits are suspended and construction shall cease 
until the City Council has made a final determination of the appeal. 


 
CERTIFICATION: I, the undersigned Secretary to the Board of Zoning Appeals for the City of Saint 


Paul, Minnesota, do hereby certify that I have compared the foregoing copy with 
the original record in my office; and find the same to be a true and correct copy of 
said original and of the whole thereof, as based on approved minutes of the Saint 
Paul Board of Zoning Appeals meeting held on December 3, 2018 and on record in 
the Department of Safety and Inspections, 375 Jackson Street, Saint Paul, 
Minnesota. 


 
 


SAINT PAUL BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
 
 


____________________________ 
 


Debbie M. Crippen 
Secretary to the Board 


 
 
 

































WE WILL BE MAKING THE CURRENT HALF STORY TO A FULL 2ND STORY TO TIE IN WITH PREVIOUS 2 STORY 
ADDITION (75% OF 2ND FLOOR), OPENING 1 WALL BETWEEN KITCHEN AND DINING ROOM AND ADDING A MUD 
ROOM ON MAIN FLOOR.  ONLY NEW SECTION OF 2ND FLOOR WILL GET NEW SIDING. The following "Trade" Permits 
are required for this project: Electrical,  W.Air Vent,  Plumbing,


AdditionWORK TYPE:Single Family DwellingSUB TYPE:


Contractor Name Application Method


Date Received # of Existing Dwelling Units


Change/Expansion of Use? Final # of Dwelling Units


Valuation Override Design Review Require?


Proposed Primary Use (Single 
Family)


Existing Primary Use (Single 
Family)


State Valuation Estimated Start Date


Estimated Completion Date Scope of New Work


Exterior Repair Work (R) Primary Occupancy Group


Primary Construction Type Addition Length (ft)


Addition Width (ft) Addition Height


Addition # of Stories Addition Basement?


Setback- Front Setback- Rear


Setback- Side 1 Setback- Side 2


Plan Number


Midway Vo- Tech Inc 
Dba Rpz Testing Service


Walk- in


Aug 24, 2018 1


No 1


No Yes


R- Single Family 
Dwelling


R- Single Family 
Dwelling


$125,000.00 Sep 01, 2018


Dec 31, 2018 Full Permit


Misc.Minor Repairs IRC- 1


V- B 48


26 22


2 No


32' 43'


W 3.8' existing first 
floor, 4' for 2nd floor


E 8.8'


V- 2018- 2198


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


Design Review Fee


Permit Fee


Plan Check Fee


Surcharge B

























































Lima One Capital
201 E MCBEE AVE SUITE
GREENVILLE SC 29601


Re:   1629 Hartford Ave


Dear Property Owner:


The following is the Code Compliance report you requested on April 13, 2020.


Please be advised that this report is accurate and correct as of the date May 07, 
2020.  All deficiencies identified by the City after this date must also be corrected 
and all codes and ordinances must be complied with.  This report is valid for 365 
days from May 07, 2020.  This report may be used in lieu of a Truth in Housing 
Report required in St Paul Legislative Code 189.  This building must be properly 
secured and the property maintained at all times.


In order to sell or reoccupy this property the following deficiencies must be 
corrected.  A Legislative Code exemption (Chapter 33.03(f)) allows a Category 2 
Vacant Building to be sold "as is" providing the buyer, prior to closing, completes 
an approval process.  For further information, call Reid Soley at 651- 266- 9120.


May 07, 2020


1.  This property is in a(n) R4 zoning district.
2.  This property was inspected as a Single Family Dwelling.


An Equal Opportunity Employer


File#:   19 110757 VB2


Department of Safety & Inspections
Ricardo X. Cervantes, Director


CITY OF SAINT PAUL 375 Jackson Street, Suite 220
Saint Paul, MN 55101- 1806


Telephone: 651- 266- 8989
Facsimile: 651- 266- 9124
www.stpaul.gov/dsi


1.
2.


3.
4.


Dry out basement and eliminate source of moisture. SPLC 34.10 (10)
Where wall and ceiling covering is removed install full thickness or code-
specified insulation. MN Energy Code Ch. 1322.1101 (exept. 4)
Air- seal and insulate attic/access door. MN Energy Code Ch 1322.1102.4
Install Smoke Detectors/Carbon Monoxide Detectors per MN Conservation 
Code and the MN Dept. of Labor and Industry:  Install per code where feasible. 







Re: 1629 Hartford Ave


An Equal Opportunity Employer


MNRC Ch 1309 Sect 313.2.1
5.
6.


7.
8.
9.


10.


11.


12.


13.


14.


15.
16.


17.


Install water- proof enclosure in shower area. MNRC Ch 1309 Sect. 307
Remove trees which are against foundation of home and garage. SPLC 34.09 
(1b)
Need zoning approval on roof height or change height/design.
2nd floor stair to be redone to meet new code.
Must verify west property line. If less then 5' contractor must build an 
approved firewall assembly.
Provide adequate access, ventilation and clearance in crawl space area. MNRC 
Ch 1309 Sect. 408
Install handrails (34 inches -  38 inches above each nosing) and guardrails (36 
inch minimum) at all stairways, and return hand rail ends into a newel post or 
wall per attachment. MNRC Ch 1309 Sect. 311 & 312
Strap or support top of stair stringers for structural stability. MNRC Ch 1309 
Sect 311.1
Repair or Replace any deteriorated window sash, broken glass, sash holders, 
re- putty, etc as necessary. SPLC 34.09 (3)
Repair or replace damaged doors and frames as necessary, including storm 
doors. SPLC 34.09 (3f)
Weather seal exterior doors, threshold and weather- stripping. SPLC 34.09 (3f)
Install floor covering in bathroom and kitchen that is impervious to water. SPLC 
34.10 (4)
Any framing members that required repair or do not meet code (where wall and 
ceiling covering is removed, members that are over- spanned, over- spaced, not 
being carried properly, door and window openings that are not adequately 
supported, etc.) are to be reconstructed in an approved manner. SPLC 34.34 (1)


18. A building permit is required to correct the above deficiencies.  All work is to 
be done in a workmanship like manner.  SPLC 33.03 (a)


1. Service/Sub Panel - Throughout - Due to the nature of construction of this 
vacant property and the fact that all walls have been removed, the service and 
all wiring shall be installed per the most current National Electrical Code.
All electrical work must be done by a Minnesota- licensed electrical contractor 
under an electrical permit.


2.


1. All plumbing abandoned. Install all drain waste vent and water piping to code. 
Install all plumbing fixtures to code.


Page 2







Re: 1629 Hartford Ave


An Equal Opportunity Employer


All the above corrections to waste, vent, water, and gas piping shall be per the 
Minnesota Plumbing Code Chapter 4714, Minnesota Rules Chapter 326, 4716, 
1300, the Minnesota Mechanical Code, the Minnesota Fuel Gas Code, and Saint 
Paul Regional Water Services Water Code.  All plumbing must be done by a 
plumbing contractor licensed in the State of Minnesota and the City of St. Paul 
by a plumber licensed in the State of Minnesota who also possess a City of 
Saint Paul Competency Card and after obtaining an approved City of Saint Paul 
Plumbing Permit.


2.


1. Clean and Orsat test furnace/boiler burner.  Check all controls for proper 
operation.  Check furnace heat exchanger for leak; provide documentation 
from a licensed contractor that the heating unit is safe.


2. Install approved metal chimney liner.


3. Replace furnace/boiler flue venting to code.


4. Connect furnace/boiler and water heater venting into chimney liner.


5. Vent clothes dryer to code.


6. Provide adequate combustion air and support duct to code.


7. Provide support for gas lines to code.


8. Plug, cap and/or remove all disconnected gas lines, non- conforming gas lines 
and unapproved valves.


9. Provide all supply and return ducts for warm air heating system must be clean 
before final approval for occupancy. Documentation is required from a licensed 
duct- cleaning contractor that the duct system has been cleaned.


10. Repair and/or replace heating registers as necessary.


11. Provide heat in every habitable room and bathrooms.


12. Support supply and return piping from heating system according to code.


13. Conduct witnessed pressure test on hot water heating system and check for 
leaks.


14. Repair or replace radiator valves as needed.


15. Mechanical permits are required for the above work.


1. See attachment for permit requirements and appeals procedure.


2. Provide plans and specifications for any portion of the building that is to be 
rebuilt.
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Re: 1629 Hartford Ave


You may file an appeal to this notice by contacting the City Clerk's Office at 651-
266- 8688.  Any appeal must be made in writing within 10 days of this notice.  (You 
must submit a copy of this notice when you appeal, and pay a filing fee.)


If you have any questions regarding this inspection report, please contact Nathan 
Bruhn between 7:30 -  9:00 AM at 651- 266- 9046 or leave a voice mail message.


Sincerely,


Nathan Bruhn
Code Compliance Officer
Department of Safety and Inspections
City of Saint Paul
375 Jackson Street, Suite 220
Saint Paul MN  55101
Phone:  651- 266- 9033
Email:   nathan.bruhn@ci.stpaul.mn.us


Attachments


An Equal Opportunity Employer
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8/24/2018.  Their plans required BZA approval of two variances.  One for maximum building height:
the zoning code allows a 22 ft. limit; the plan called for a height of 24.8 ft.  The second was for side-
yard setback on the west side: code requires a 4 ft. minimum; their plan was for a 3.8 ft. setback (the
same setback as the existing house).
 
An application to the BZA for those variances was made on 11/18/2018.  The BZA denied the
application on 12/3/2018 (see the attached resolution).
 
The building permit application was modified to lower the maximum building height to the allowable
limit (22 ft.) and to increase the side-yard setback of the second-story addition to the required 4 ft.
(see the attached, modified application).  The building permit was paid for and issued on 1/2/2019
(see the attached permit).
 
The check that paid for the building permit, in the amount of $2,846.58, was returned to DSI for
insufficient funds.  That was noted in AMANDA on 2/5/2019.  Despite several notifications to the
contractor and owner, another payment was never issued to DSI.  It wasn’t until 10/29/2019 that a
stop-work order was issued  by Jason Brash, a DSI Building Inspector. 
 
Lima One Capital, the mortgage lender, foreclosed on this property on 12/26/2019 (see attached
sheriff’s sale documents). 
 
On 8/31/2020 an OTA was mailed and the property was placed in Cat 3 status.  On 9/3/2020 the
status was taken back to Cat 2 because an intended buyer submitted an executed purchase
agreement.  On 10/28/2020 we were notified that the intended buyer could not produce the
required funding and the purchase agreement was canceled.  That same day the property was
placed back in Cat 3 status.  On 11/6/2020 a Notice of Public Hearings was mailed.
 
On 11/23/2020 Building Inspector Nathan Bruhn, in an email, wrote: “At the time of my code
compliance inspection the roof had not changed. It was still at the 24’ 8”.”  (Please see the attached
Code Compliance Report, dated 5/7/2020). If that is the case, then either another application must
be made to the BZA (if that is even allowable) to grant a height variance or the height of the
structure must be reduced to 22 ft.  Nathan didn’t inform us of whether the side-yard setback
requirement was met when the addition was built.
 
Please let me know, Steve, if there is any additional information you’d like me to add.
 

Reid Soley
DSI Inspector III
Department of Safety and Inspections
375 Jackson St, Suite 220
Saint Paul, MN 55101
P: 651-266-9120
reid.soley @ci.stpaul.mn.us

Making Saint Paul the Most Livable City in America
 

http://www.stpaul.gov/
mailto:connie.sandberg@ci.stpaul.mn.us
http://www.stpaul.gov/mfb
http://www.stpaul.gov/myt
http://www.stpaul.gov/mtw
http://www.stpaul.gov/mgd


“DSI’s Mission:  To preserve and improve the quality of life in Saint Paul by protecting and
promoting public health and safety for all.”
 
 
 
 

From: Magner, Steve (CI-StPaul) <steve.magner@ci.stpaul.mn.us> 
Sent: Thursday, November 19, 2020 5:26 AM
To: Soley, Reid (CI-StPaul) <reid.soley@ci.stpaul.mn.us>
Cc: Yannarelly, Joe (CI-StPaul) <joe.yannarelly@ci.stpaul.mn.us>; Sheffer, Vicki (CI-StPaul)
<vicki.sheffer@ci.stpaul.mn.us>
Subject: FW: 1629 Hartford
 
Reid, please check into this and provide me a short report for Marcia.
 

Steve Magner
Code Enforcement Manager
Department of Safety and Inspections
375 Jackson St Suite 220
Saint Paul, MN 55101
P: 651-266-1928
F: 651-266-1919
steve.magner@ci.stpaul.mn.us

 
 

From: Moermond, Marcia (CI-StPaul) <marcia.moermond@ci.stpaul.mn.us> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 18, 2020 8:12 PM
To: Magner, Steve (CI-StPaul) <steve.magner@ci.stpaul.mn.us>; Yannarelly, Joe (CI-StPaul)
<joe.yannarelly@ci.stpaul.mn.us>; Soley, Reid (CI-StPaul) <reid.soley@ci.stpaul.mn.us>
Cc: Vang, Mai (CI-StPaul) <mai.vang@ci.stpaul.mn.us>; Zimny, Joanna (CI-StPaul)
<joanna.zimny@ci.stpaul.mn.us>
Subject: 1629 Hartford
 
Looks like this is on for LH 12/8. Wondering if you can include in the staff report what’s up with the

denied building permit and BZA case and the half done 2nd story construction. Thanks.
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